IN THE SUPREME COURT OF APPEALS, FOR THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

ANThonie Henderson

APPELLANT

VS.

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

CAUSE NO. CV 2008-0175083

E DRESPONDENTS

AUG 2 5 2008

OFFICE OF THE CLERK SUPREME COURT COURT OF APPEALS

APPELLANT BRIEF FOR DENIAL OF POST-CONVICTION COLLATERAL RELIEF, PURSUANT \$99-39-5 (1) ()

2 ORIGINAL

3800 COUNTY Rd. 540

GREENWOOD, MISSISSIPPI 38930

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF APPEALS, FOR THE	rr
Anthonie Hendoson vs.	APPELLANT CAUSE NO. <u>PV 2008-01756P3</u>
STATE OF MISSISSIPPI	APPELLEE
CERTIFICATE OF INTEREST	'ED PERSONS
The undersigned counsel of record certif	ies that the following listed persons

,
the trounded they thed March 19° 2006 has not)
a tost and speedy reneation heaving the heaving held on	
place of the state	
Court March 19 2006 because applicat was deviced	Γ_
setition to amended that was submitted by the Trial	
Appellants course! should have tiled a Motion to dismiss	—
Took To the and impulial revexation heaving April 27 2007	
troulants (Louved was in effective, which deprived him	
SSUE # 2: WHELFARE APPRICATE DROBOTION WAS UNIQUEDAIL RELEGION	Ι
	٠.

(L.) auta
PUMS V. State (Miss, 1983) 438 &, 2d 1347
sentence exceeds the maxium authorized by law,
Violation of \$99-35-50 (3) and \$98-39-5-50 (4)
thoustant was sentenced and indicted under the wong stablue
Theretore the mounting sentence that the petitioner could have
for NOT more than (3) years or both,
Thousand dollars (43,000,00) Or imprisoned in the State Penifory
2011 100 200 100 100 100 100 100 100 100
Than one (1) uear or both or tired not more than three
dollars (8/00000) at contined in the county joil for not more
fifty (350) grains, mad be thired not more than one thousand
(2) More than think (30) grans, but less than the hurdred
Darley Hun Hinth (36) growns, but less High two Hundred
8 41- 29-139 (D) (D) (D) PE1-PK-14.8
(2)(2) because the come lab report was 108, it gams.
Aprellant should have been indicted to S-H-29-139
authorized by law i
ISSUE # 3: Whether Apoellants surface exceeds the maxium

IZZAE #¢

CONTINUE-ON-NEXT-PACE PAGE (4)

h.

OEbse "M Poomrang
. 08688 "M JOOMNAAIG
012 Py 12/100) 098E
SE-30/10T
TSIEN # HENDEREN # K3787
Anthone Henderson
Medinal Multipages
This 10th day of Tuly 2008 A.D.
be appropriate under these circumstances
as to take any chier action as the towel deems to
dequiring the state to tile an shrewer or other Pleadings
requests that this Hangrable land enter and arder
WHEREFORE MENNIERS CONSIDERED APPORTUTE respectfully
11/11 1 11 (2004) 12/11/100 . 2004204111/1
himmon mananto d
The second of th
County and all took to the accessed
TVI dentiany Heaving by the Circuit Court of Harola
Reliet 1 should be reversed and remanded for an
Appliants Denial of Rist - Convictory Collatoral
CONCINCION

North Mississippi Laboratory

220 Power Drive Batesville, MS 38606 662-563-5681

Crime Lab Case # 00-002968

Agency Case # 100299B2

1 of 1

Requesting Officer Paul Shivers

Requesting Agency Batesville Police Dept.

Address

106 College St.

Phone #

Batesville, MS 38606

Individual(s) JAMIE TEDFORD (S)

Offense CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE

County Panola

Evidence Submitted

One sealed evidence bag containing two plastic bags that contains a green leafy substance and several small plastic bags containing a green leaafy substances. TPW = 108.4 grams

Sections

Service

DRUG ANALYSIS

(BATESVILLE)otes-

Examination for Controlled Substances (B)

Examine submission 0001 for the presence of controlled substances.

Delivered By
Signature

Part Signature

Page 1 to 1
Signature

Commission 1111

Commission 1111

EXHIBIT - A-

THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI SEVENTEENTH CIRCUIT COURT DISTRICT

#K3787

PANOLA COUNTY
SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT

JULY, 2000 GRAND JURY TERM

CAUSE NO. CR 2000 - 90 CP2

THE GRAND JURORS of the State of Mississippi, taken from the body of the good and lawful citizens of the Second Judicial District of Panola County, duly elected, empaneled, sworn and charged to inquire in and for the District, County and State aforesaid, at the Grand Jury Session aforesaid, in the name and by the authority of the State of Mississippi, upon their oaths present:

That, ANTHONIE JERMAINE HENDERSON, late of the District, County and State aforesaid, on or about the 2nd day of October, in the year of our Lord, 1999, in the District, County, and State aforesaid, and within the jurisdiction of this Court, did wilfully, unlawfully and feloniously, knowingly and intentionally possess with intent to sell, barter, transfer, distribute or dispense a controlled substance, to-wit: Marihuana, more than one (1) ounce, in direct violation of Section 41-29-139 (a), Mississippi Code 1972 Annotated, as amended, contrary to the form of the statute in such cases made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Mississippi.

A TRUE BILL

District Attorney

Foreman of the Grand Jury

WITNESSES:

Filed this 12 day of 1, 2000.

W. Jacker Clerk,

By fun pie D.C

EXHIBIT - B -

BR 3032

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF PANOLA COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI

SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT

MAR 13 2000

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

VS.

CAUSE NO. CR 2000-90-B(P2)

ANTONIE JERMAINE HENDERSON

DOB: 02-22-80

SSN:

427-39-2368

BENCH WARRANT

TO THE SHERIFF OF SAID COURT:

GREETINGS:

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED TO take ANTONIE JERMAINE

HENDERSON and bring him before the Circuit Court Judge of said County to answer the charge of violation of probation that has been filed by the District Attorney, to-wit: 1.) Failure to pay assessments, as ordered and 2.) Committing new crimes; to-wit: On or about November 2, 2005 the Defendant was convicted of the crimes of Possession of Marijuana and Failure to Obey a Police Officer in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On or about November 3, 2005 the Defendant committed the crimes of Possession of Marihuana, Obstructing Public Streets and No Proof of Liability Insurance, contrary to the Statutes of the State, in such cases made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Mississippi, and have with you the original of this warrant with your return thereon.

SO ORDERED this the 1st day of March

2006.

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF PANOLA COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI CONTROL OF PANOLA C

SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT.

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

VS.

CAUSE NO. CR 2000-90-B(P2)

10 (SE) 30 (SE)

THOMA WARRINGHT

MAR 2 7 2007

MOUNT OLL M

ANTONIE JERMAINE HENDERSON

B/M

DOB: 02-22-80

SSN:

427-39-2368 .

BENCH WARRANT

TO THE SHERIFF OF SAID COURT:

GREETINGS:

. . - - - . . - - - . .

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED TO take ANTONIE JERMAINE

HENDERSON and bring him before the Circuit Court Judge of said County to answer the charge of violation of probation that has been filed by the District Attorney, to-wit: 1.) Failure to pay assessments, as ordered and 2.) Committing new crimes; to-wit: On November 2, 2005 the Defendant was convicted of the crimes of Possession of Marijuana and Failure to Obey a Police Officer in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On June 14, 2006 the Defendant was convicted of the crime of Loud Music in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On June 28, 2006 the Defendant was convicted of the crimes of Possession of Marijuana in a Motor Vehicle, No Seatbelt in Use and Open Container in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On September 6, 2006 the Defendant was convicted of the crimes of Expired Tag and No Seatbelt in Use in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On September 13, 2006 the Defendant was convicted of the crime of Expired Tag in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On September 27, 2006 the Defendant was convicted of the crime of Expired Tag in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On January 17, 2007

the Defendant was convicted of the crimes of Failure to Obey a Police Officer and Possession of Marijuana in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On January 24, 2007 the Defendant was convicted of the crimes of Failure to Obey a Police Officer and Expired Tag in the Municipal Court of Batesville, contrary to the Statutes of the State, in such cases made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Mississippi, and have with you the original of this warrant with your return thereon.

SO ORDERED this the 22 day of March

2007

CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

OF PANOLA

Jos Reid, Clerk of the Circuit Court of the state and correct copy of the original instrument new on the inmy office at Batesville, Mississippi.

This flien A bay of W. Joe Reid, Circuit Clerk

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

PANCL COUNTY

have this day executed the within personally by delivering to the within

named Antonie Jermine Henderson

This the 28 th day of march 2007
HUGH W. BRIGHT

Sheriff of Panola County

Deputy Sheriff

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF PANOLA COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI

SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

VS.

CAUSE NO. CR2000-90-B(P2)

ANTONIE JERMAINE HENDERSON

D/IVI

DOB: 02-22-80

SSN:

427-39-2368

AMENDED PETITION TO REVOKE SUSPENDED SENTENCE

COMES NOW the State of Mississippi, by and through the District Attorney, and files this Amended Petition to Revoke the Suspended Sentence of the above named Defendant; and in support thereof, the State would show unto the Court the following facts, to wit:

- 1.) That the State files its Petition to Revoke the Suspended Sentence in the above styled and numbered cause on February 23, 2006.
- 2.) The original Petition to Revoke the Suspended Sentence shall remain as previously set forth except that:

Paragraph 4 of said original Petition shall read as follows: That the Defendant has violated the good behavior conditions of his suspended sentence as follows: 1.) Failure to pay assessments, as ordered and 2.) Committing new crimes; to -wit: On November 2, 2005 the Defendant was convicted of the crimes of Possession of Marijuana and Failure to Obey a Police Officer in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On June 14, 2006 the Defendant was convicted of the crime of Loud Music in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On June 28, 2006 the Defendant was convicted of the crimes of Possession of Marijuana in a Motor Vehicle, No Seatbelt in Use and Open Container in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On September 6, 2006 the Defendant was convicted of the crimes of Expired Tag and No Seatbelt in Use in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On September 13, 2006 the Defendant was convicted of the crime EXHIBIT

Expired Tag in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On September 27, 2006 the Defendant was convicted of the crime of Expired Tag in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On January 17, 2007 the Defendant was convicted of the crimes of Failure to Obey a Police Officer and Possession of Marijuana in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On January 24, 2007 the Defendant was convicted of the crimes of Failure to Obey a Police Officer and Expired Tag in the Municipal Court of Batesville.

Respectfully submitted this the \square day of \MARCh 2007

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY SEVENTEENTH CIRCUIT COURT DISTRICT POST OFFICE BOX 1635 BATESVILLE, MISSISSIPPI 38606

BODEDT I PELL

ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

MSB NO. 3559

DISTRICT ATTORNEY

ROBERT J. KELLY
ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

SMITH MURPHEY, V ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

SUSAN M. BREWER
ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

ALLEN B. COUCH, JR. ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

RHONDA M. AMIS ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

CELESTE E. WILSON ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

April 2, 2007



STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

DISTRICT ATTORNEY

17TH CIRCUIT COURT DISTRICT

101 Eureka Street P. O. Box 1635 BATESVILLE, MS 38606 PHONE: 662-563-6636 FAX: 662-563-6652 CRIMINAL INVESTIGATOR

JACKIE SMETH CRIMINAL INVESTIGATOR

Bryan D. Cox CRIMINAL INVESTIGATOR

SHERRI FRANKS
VICTIM ASSISTANCE COORDINATOR

IDA M. BRYAN VICTIM ASSISTANCE COORDINATOR

Antonie Henderson David M. Bryan Justice Complex Batesville, Miss. 38606

Dear Mr. Henderson:

Your brother Andra delivered your letter to my home. Your revocation hearing is scheduled for April 24, 2007 at the Batesville Courthouse at 9 a.m.. The original revocation petition was filed on February 23, 2006. I can't explain why you were not arrested after the bench warrant was issued. The amended petition was filed on March 15, 2007 after I was informed that you had misdemeanor convictions in Batesville Municipal Court. A bench warrant was signed on March 12, 2006 so I told the officers to arrest you. These convictions are listed in the amended petition, a copy of which is included with this letter.

Jackie Smith

Criminal Investigator

SERVING THE COUNTIES OF: DESOTO, TATE, PANOLA, YALOBUSHA AND TALLAHATCHIE

EXHIBIT -E-

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF PANOLA COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

VS.

CAUSE NO. CR 2000-90-B(P2)

ANTONIE JERMAINE HENDERSON

B/M

DOB: 02-22-80

SSN:

427-39-2368

BENCH WARRANT

TO THE SHERIFF OF SAID COURT:

MAR 2 7 2007

GREETINGS:

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED TO take ANTONIE JERMAINE

HENDERSON and bring him before the Circuit Court Judge of said County to answer the charge of violation of probation that has been filed by the District Attorney, to-wit: 1.) Failure to pay assessments, as ordered and 2.) Committing new crimes; to-wit: On November 2, 2005 the Defendant was convicted of the crimes of Possession of Marijuana and Failure to Obey a Police Officer in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On June 14, 2006 the Defendant was convicted of the crime of Loud Music in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On June 28, 2006 the Defendant was convicted of the crimes of Possession of Marijuana in a Motor Vehicle, No Seatbelt in Use and Open Container in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On September 6, 2006 the Defendant was convicted of the crimes of Expired Tag and No Seatbelt in Use in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On September 13, 2006 the Defendant was convicted of the crime of Expired Tag in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On September 27, 2006 the Defendant was convicted of the crime of Expired Tag in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On Jaguary 17, 2007

EXHIBIT -E- the Defendant was convicted of the crimes of Failure to Obey a Police Officer and Possession of Marijuana in the Municipal Court of Batesville. On January 24, 2007 the Defendant was convicted of the crimes of Failure to Obey a Police Officer and Expired Tag in the Municipal Court of Batesville, contrary to the Statutes of the State, in such cases made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Mississippi, and have with you the original of this warrant with your return thereon.

SO ORDERED this the 22 day of March

2007

CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF PANOLA COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI FOR THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT

ANTHONIE J. HENDERSON

PETITIONER

VS.

FILED

CAUSE NO. CV2008-0175BP2

JUN 3 0 2008

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

W. JOE REID CIRCUIT CLERK

RESPONDENT

ORDER

This came before the Court upon Anthonie J. Henderson ("Henderson"), *pro se*, filing his "Motion for Post-Conviction Collateral Relief" arguing that he should not have been on probation because his sentence was too long in criminal cause CR2000-90BP2. He also asserted his sentence was revoked without counsel; he had not been indicted or convicted of another felony when he was revoked; and his plea was involuntary.

The Court, having reviewed the pleadings and both of the court files, finds that Henderson's petition is without merit and should be dismissed pursuant to MISS. CODE ANN. §99-39-11(2), without benefit of a hearing.

Henderson was indicted in CR2000-90CP2 for possession with intent to sell marijuana, more than one ounce. On August 9, 2000, Henderson entered a plea of guilty to the charge. The Court sentenced Henderson to ten (10) years to serve in the Mississippi Department of Corrections. The Court suspended the sentence. This sentence was to be served consecutive to his three year sentence in CR2000-96BP2. On August 20, 2003, the State filed a petition to revoke suspended sentence. On December 9, 2003, Henderson, by counsel, filed a motion to dismiss

EXHIBIT
-F-

113/527-528-525

petition to revoke suspended sentence. On December 11, 2003, after a hearing, the Court revoked two years of Henderson's suspended sentence. On February 24, 2006, the State filed another petition to revoke suspended sentence. On March 19, 2006, the State filed an amended petition. After a hearing on April 27, 2007, the Court revoked all of the remaining suspended sentence.

First of all, probationers do not have, per se, a right to counsel at revocation hearings. Whether probationers have a right to counsel must be answered on a case-by-case basis in the exercise of a sound discretion by the state authority charged with responsibility for administering the probation and parole system. See *Reily v. State*, 562 So.2d 1206, 1209 (Miss. 1990). Henderson knew full well he could be represented by counsel at the revocation because he had been represented by Azki Shah at his first revocation hearing in this cause. This argument has no merit.

Second, for a probationer to be revoked the State does not have to prove that the defendant was convicted of a crime, but when the State does not prove that the defendant was convicted of a crime which would be a basis for revocation, it must present actual proof that the defendant engaged in such criminal conduct. See *Grayson v. State*, 648 So.2d 1129, 1134 (Miss. 1994). The State put on proof that Henderson was convicted of several misdemeanors. Henderson's suspended sentence was conditional on him not committing <u>any</u> crimes, not just felonies. The State met their burden of proving that Henderson had violated his suspended sentence. This argument has no merit.

In CR2000-90BP2, Henderson was indicted for violation of 41-29-139(a) for possession with intent to sell marijuana, <u>more</u> than one ounce. Henderson was also charged in CR2000-96BP2 for possession with intent to sell marijuana, less than one ounce. Henderson entered a



plea of guilty in CR2000-96BP2 and received a three year sentence to serve in MDOC. Henderson reads the statute under which he was convicted in CR2000-90BP2 incorrectly. He was charged with possession with intent to sell marijuana over one ounce and he is looking at the simple possession statute for what he thinks his sentence should have been. His argument about his sentence being too long also has no merit. Also, his allegation that his plea was involuntary because he did not get the sentence he was promised has no merit. He got exactly what he alleges he was told when he was originally sentenced.

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED that the "Motion for Post-Conviction Collateral filed by Anthonie J. Henderson in the above styled and numbered cause is DISMISSED pursuant to MISS. CODE ANN. § 99-39-11(2); and, that the Clerk of this Court is directed to mail certified copies of this Order to the inmate, Anthonie J. Henderson, #K3787, Delta Correctional Facility, 3800 County Road 540, Greenwood, MS 38930, and Records Department, Mississippi Department of Corrections, P.O. Box 880, Parghman, MS 38738.

SO ORDERED AND ADJUDGED this, the Low day of

ANDREW C. BAKER CIRCUIT JUDGE

I, W. Joe Reld, Clerk of the Circuit Court of the state and county aforesaid, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the original instrument now on file in

my office at Batesville, Mississiq

113/525