IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

ANTHONIE HENDERSON

VS.

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

FILED SEP 19 2003 OFFICE OF THE CLER SUPREME COLLET COURT OF APPEAL

APPELLANT

NO. 2008-CP-1286-COA

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: W. GLENN WATTS SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL MISSISSIPPI BAR NO.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS
SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT4
ARGUMENT
PROPOSITION I
HENDERSON RECEIVED EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF
COUNSEL
PROPOSITION II
THE RECORD REFLECTS THAT HENDERSON WAS
PROPERLY REVOKED
PROPOSITION III
THE RECORD REFLECTS THAT HENDERSON WAS
PROPERLY SENTENCED 10
PROPOSITION IV
THE RECORD REFLECTS THAT PLEA WAS
INTELLIGENTLY ENTERED AND HENDERSON WAS
PROPERLY SENTENCED11
CONCLUSION
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

STATE CASES

Brooks v. State, 573 So. 2d 1350 (Miss. 1990)7
Branch v. State , 347 So. 2d 957, 958 (Miss. 1977)
Grayson v. State 648 So. 2d 1129, 1134 (Miss.1994)
Lindsay v. State, 720 So. 2d 182, 184 (Miss. 1998)7
Myers v. State, 583 So. 2d 174, 177 (Miss. 1991)11
Riely v. State 562 So. 2d 1206, 1209 (Miss. 1990)
Smith v. State , 490 So. 2d 860 (Miss. 1986)7
Smith v. State, 636 So. 2d 1220, 1227 (Miss. 1994)5, 11
State v. Esprinal, 488 So. 2d 228, 229 (La.1986)
Vielee v. State, 653 So. 2d 920, 922 (Miss 1995)7

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

ANTHONIE HENDERSON

APPELLANT

VS.

NO. 2008-CP-1286-COA

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

PROCEDURAL HISTORY:

On August 9, 2000, Anthonie Henderson, "Henderson" pled guilty to possession with intent to sell before a Panola County Circuit Court Judge Andrew Baker. Henderson's plea was accepted as freely and voluntarily entered. He was given a ten year suspended sentence in the custody of the Mississippi Department of Corrections. It was "consecutive" to a previously imposed sentence of three years. C.P. 38.

After a hearing with notice and representation on December 11, 2003, Henderson's suspended sentence was revoked. Two years of his sentence was reinstated. After another revocation hearing in February, 2006, all of his remaining suspended sentence was revoked. C.P. 39.

On June 30, 2008, Henderson filed a Motion For Post Conviction relief, which was denied. C.P. 9-30; 38-40. From that denial of relief, he filed notice of appeal to the Supreme Court. C.P. 42.

ISSUES ON APPEAL

I. DID HENDERSON RECEIVE EFFECTIVE COUNSEL? II.

WAS HENDERSON PROPERLY REVOKED?

.

III.

WAS HENDERSON PROPERLY SENTENCED?

IV.

WAS HENDERSON'S PLEA VOLUNTARY AND INTELLIGENTLY ENTERED?

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On July 12, 2000, Henderson was indicted for possession of marijuana "more than one ounce" with intent to sell on or about October 2, 1999. This was under M. C. A. § 41-29-139(a). C.P. 80.

On August 9, 2000, Henderson pled guilty with counsel to possession of more than one ounce with intent to sell before Panola County Circuit Court Judge Andrew Baker. C.P. 38-40.

The trial court found after advising and questioning Henderson and his counsel, that his plea was voluntarily and intelligently entered. Henderson's plea was accepted as freely and voluntarily entered. He was given a ten year suspended sentence in the custody of the MDOC. However, this suspended sentence was consecutive to a previous three year sentence in CR 2000-96BP2 for possession of marijuana "less than one ounce" with intent to sell. C.P. 38-39.

After notice and a hearing with counsel in August, 2003, Henderson's suspended sentence was revoked. C.P. 33-37. It was revoked because there was evidence that Henderson had violated the terms of his probation. He had done so by committing a misdemeanor which was "possession of marijuana." Two years of his sentence was reinstated. After a second revocation hearing, all of Henderson's remaining suspended sentence was revoked. C.P. 39.

On May 13, 2008, Henderson filed a "Motion For Post Conviction relief," which was denied. C.P. 9-28; 38-40. From that denial of relief, he filed notice of appeal to the Supreme Court. C.P. 42.

3

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

1. The record reflects that Henderson was provided counsel at the first of his two revocation hearings. He was not entitled to an attorney at either hearing. It is a matter for the trial court's discretion. There is a lack of evidence that the trial court abused its discretion in not providing an attorney for the second revocation hearing. C. P. 39. **Riely v. State** 562 So. 2d 1206, 1209 (Miss. 1990)

2. The record reflects that Henderson was properly revoked. He was revoked after a notice and a hearing. The notice identified the alleged violations such as "possession of marijuana" and "failure to obey a police officer." C.P. It is not necessary for a petitioner to have been found guilty of a felony, as claimed by Henderson. It is only necessary that he violate the terms of his probation. In the instant cause, Henderson was found to have been convicted of several, not just one, misdemeanor. Grayson v. State 648 So. 2d 1129, 1134 (Miss.1994). One of the terms of his probation have been found to have been convicted of several, not just one, misdemeanor was that he "not commit any crime." C.P. 39. A misdemeanor is a crime. Therefore, there was record evidence in support of his revocation.

3. The record reflects that Henderson was properly sentenced. The record reflects that Henderson was indicted for possession of "more than one ounce with intent to sell."C. P. 80. He pled guilty to this offense and was given a ten year suspended sentence. However, it was consecutive to prior three year sentence. C.P. 38. The ten year sentence was within the range provided for a conviction for possession of marijuana with intent to sell.

Henderson had also been previously charged with possession of less than one ounce. Henderson was therefore not entitled to be sentenced for simple possession as he claims in his appeal brief. C.P. 39-40. **Branch v. State**, 347 So. 2d 957, 958 (Miss. 1977)

4. The record reflects that Henderson was properly informed at his guilty plea hearing of the

sentence he would receive. He received that sentence, which was a suspended ten year sentence. The sentence he is currently serving is a result of his having his probation revoked not once, but twice.

There is no evidence indicating that Henderson was mislead as to his sentence. There was no basis for finding any "reliance" upon any representation made to him as to his sentence other than the ten year suspended sentence he received. **Smith v. State**, 636 So. 2d 1220, 1227 (Miss. 1994).

Therefore, he should not be heard to complain that his plea was involuntary because he was given an alleged unexpected sentence. C.P. 40.

ARGUMENT

PROPOSITION I

HENDERSON RECEIVED EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL.

Henderson believes that he did not receive effective assistance of counsel. It was ineffective because Henderson thinks that he was entitled to have counsel at his revocation hearings. Motion page 9-29.

To the contrary, the record reflects that Henderson did have counsel for his first revocation hearing. The record reflects that this counsel was Mr. Azki Shah. C.P. 34.

In addition a petitioner is not entitled to an attorney at a revocation hearing. The appointment of counsel is left to the state's correctional personnel and the trial court's discretion. This discretion is based upon the complexity of the issues raised concerning the alleged violations of probation and parole.

In **Riely v. State** 562 So. 2d 1206, 1209 (Miss. 1990), the Court stated that representation at a revocation hearing was within the trial court's discretion.

In sum, provision of representation at the first three hearings was neither requested nor necessitated in view of the facts and applicable law. Indeed, the case was not "complex or otherwise difficult to develop." And as noted, counsel was provided upon request by Riely prior to the fourth hearing and prior to his appeal to this Court. Therefore, this Court holds that Riely's allegation of error is devoid of merit.

The Appellee would submit that the record reflects that Henderson had counsel at the first of his two revocation hearings. The record reflects that he was given more than one notice, a personal letter as well as two separate revocation hearings. C.P. 82-88. He was not entitled to counsel at either his first or second hearing.

Henderson has yet to deny that he was convicted of "possession of marijuana" and "failure

to obey a police officer." Motion, page 9-29. In addition, there were other misdemeanors listed on both the original petition to revoke and the amended petition to revoke. C.P. 82-88. Among them were failure to pay assessments, possession of marijuana and open container in an automobile. C..P. 30-37.

In Lindsay v. State, 720 So. 2d 182, 184 (Miss. 1998), the Court stated that an ineffective assistance claim is deficient when supported only by a defendant's affidavit.

In examining applicable case law, it is further shown that Lindsay's claims are without merit. The only affidavits in the record that suggest appellant's counsel was deficient are those filed by Lindsay. This is not enough to prove ineffective assistance. In a case involving Post Conviction Relief, this Court has held, "that where a party offers only his affidavit, then his ineffective assistance for counsel clam is without merit." Vielee v. State, 653 So. 2d 920, 922 (Miss 1995) See also Brooks v. State, 573 So. 2d 1350 (Miss. 1990); Smith v. State , 490 So. 2d 860 (Miss. 1986).. Since that is all that the appellant offers, his claim of ineffective assistance must fail.

In the instant cause, there are no affidavits in support of any of Henderson's claims for relief.

Therefore, there is a lack of evidence that the trial court abused its discretion under the facts of this

case. This issue is lacking in merit.

PROPOSITION II

THE RECORD REFLECTS THAT HENDERSON WAS PROPERLY REVOKED.

Henderson believes that he was improperly revoked. He believes that since he was not shown to have been convicted of a felony that there was insufficient grounds for revoking his probation. Motion, page 9-25.

The record reflects that Henderson was properly revoked. It is not necessary for a petitioner to have been found guilty of a felony. It is only necessary that he violate the terms of his probation. In the instant cause, Henderson was found to have been convicted of several, not just one, misdemeanors. One of the terms of his probation was that he "not commit any crime." C.P. 39,

In Grayson v. State 648 So. 2d 1129, 1134 (Miss. 1994), the Supreme Court pointed out that

proof of the commission of a crime was sufficient for providing a basis for revocation.

At a probation hearing, a violation of the probation conditions may be shown by establishing a criminal conviction or by actual proof of the commission of a crime apart from the conviction. When the state does not prove that the defendant was convicted of a crime which would be a basis for revocation, it must present actual proof that the defendant engaged in such criminal conduct. **State v. Esprinal**, 488 So. 2d 228, 229 (La.1986).

In the instant cause, "the state put on proof that Henderson was convicted of several misdemeanors." C.P. 39. In Henderson's motion for post conviction relief, he complains that he was not convicted of any felony, but rather convicted of different "infractions" for which he paid fines. C.P. 9-14.

The record reflects that those infractions were numerous misdemeanors, such as were listed on the amended petition to revoke. C.P. 33. This included "possession of marijuana and failure to obey a police officer in Batesville." This was November 2, 2005. It also included "possession of marijuana in a motor vehicle" and open container in an automobile on June 28, 2006. C. P. 33; 84. One of the conditions for probation was that Henderson "not commit any crime."C.P. 39. Since there was evidence that Henderson was convicted of possession of marijuana and failure to obey a police officer in Batesville of November 2, 2005, there was sufficient evidence in support of the trial court's revoking of Henderson's probation.

The Appellee would submit that this issue is lacking in merit.

.

PROPOSITION III

THE RECORD REFLECTS THAT HENDERSON WAS PROPERLY SENTENCED.

The record reflects that Henderson was properly sentenced. The record reflects that Henderson was indicted for "possession of more than one ounce of marijuana with intent to sell." C.P. 80. He pled guilty to this offense and was given suspended ten year sentence. C.P. 38. This is within the range provided for a conviction for this crime. M.C. A. § 41-29-139(a).

The current sentence Henderson is serving is the result of his having been revoked for violating the terms of his probation more than once. C.P. 38-39.

Henderson was also charged with possession of less than one ounce. Henderson was not therefore entitled to be sentenced for simple possession as he claims in his appeal brief. C.P. 39-40. Rather he was properly sentenced to ten years which was suspended. This is within the range of up to thirty years for possession of marijuana with intent to sell.

In **Branch v. State**, 347 So. 2d 957, 958 (Miss. 1977), this Court state that '[t]here is a presumption that the judgment of the trial court is correct." The burden is on the Appellant to demonstrate some reversible error to this court.

Therefore, there is a lack of record evidence for finding that Henderson was improperly sentenced.

This issue is lacking in merit.

10

PROPOSITION IV

THE RECORD REFLECTS THAT PLEA WAS INTELLIGENTLY ENTERED AND HENDERSON WAS PROPERLY SENTENCED.

Henderson argues that his plea was not voluntarily entered because he did not get the sentence he was supposedly promised at his guilty plea hearing. Motion, page 9-29.

To the contrary, the record reflects that Henderson was given the sentence he was told he would receive by the trial court. C.P. 40.

Also his allegation that his plea was involuntary because he did not get the sentence he was promised has no merit. He got exactly what he alleges he was told when he was originally sentenced. C.P. 40.

In Smith v. State, 636 So. 2d 1220, 1227 (Miss. 1994), this Court relied upon Myers v.

State, 583 So. 2d 174, 177 (Miss. 1991) (quoting from Sanders v. State, 440 So. 2d 278 at 287)(Miss 1983)in its decision. In Myers, the "mere expectation" of a lesser sentence is contrasted with a "reliance" upon a "firm representation" of a lesser sentence. The Court found that Smith's plea was valid even though he had not been informed of the minimum sentence he could receive. In that case, as in the instant cause, Smith was pleading guilty based upon a plea agreement with the state and knew what the recommended sentence for armed robbery would be.

The appellee would submit that there is a lack of record evidence for holding that Henderson was ever given any basis for any reliance upon a sentence other than the ten year suspended sentence which is what he received.

This issue is also lacking in merit.

CONCLUSION

The trial court's denial of relief should be affirmed for the reasons cited in this brief.